
19.0809.03000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

02/15/2019

Amendment to: SB 2278

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures

Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

Reengrossed SB 2278 deals with eligibility requirements and provides for the confidentiality of documents 
associated with the homestead credit and the farm residence property tax exemption.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Section 1 of reengrossed SB 2278 requires farmers claiming the farm residence property tax exemption to provide 
an eligibility form to the tax assessor. 

Section 2 provides confidentiality regarding the eligibility for the homestead property tax credit program. 

Participation in these programs is not expected to change as a result of the provisions of this bill. SB 2278 Second 
Engrossment, if enacted, is expected to have no fiscal impact.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

Name: Kathryn Strombeck

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner

Telephone: 701.328.3402

Date Prepared: 02/18/2019



19.0809.02000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

02/04/2019

Amendment to: Engrossed SB 2278

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures $250,000

Appropriations $250,000

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

Engrossed SB 2278 deals with eligibility requirements and provides for the confidentiality of documents associated 
with the homestead credit and the farm residence property tax exemption.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Section 1 of Engrossed SB 2278 requires farmers claiming the farm residence property tax exemption to provide an 
eligibility form to the tax assessor. A sampling of these forms are required to be reviewed by the tax commissioner. 

Section 2 provides confidentiality regarding the eligibility for the homestead property tax credit program. 

Participation in these programs is not expected to change as a result of the provisions of this bill. The fiscal impact is 
zero, with the exception of the administrative costs.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

There will be a one-time expenditure of an estimated $250,000 to set up a system for receiving approximately 
12,000 eligibility forms from the counties each year, for the farm residence exemption. There may be additional on-
going costs associated with the annual review of a sample of these forms.



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

If enacted, engrossed SB 2278 will require a one-time $250,000 appropriation to the tax commissioner.

Name: Kathryn Strombeck

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner

Telephone: 701.328.3402

Date Prepared: 02/05/2019
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Finance and Taxation Committee 
Lewis and Clark Room, State Capitol 
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1/28/2019 

Job # 31564 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Alicia Larsgaard  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact paragraph 4 of subdivision b of subsection 15 of 
section 57-02-08, and subdivision f of subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to exemptions for records provided to assessors to document 
eligibility for the farm residence exemption and the homestead credit. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments: 2 

 
Chairman Cook: Called the hearing to order on SB 2278. 
 
Senator Dotzenrod: We have a bill that we heard earlier that has all the provisions that I 
had as a thought for this 2278.  
 
Chairman Cook: I do not know if it can be withdrawn. We will find out. Will you just step up 
and testify? Depending on what happens to SB 2351, we will see what we will do with this 
one.  
 
Senator Dotzenrod: Introduced the bill. This was a proposal to make any of the documents 
collected in the process of applying to get the farm residence exemption, those records that 
would be kept by the director of tax equalization within the counties, protected. Those 
records, if the county director puts them in a file, those are public records. Those would 
should incomes and where they come from and the kind of information that we would usually 
consider to be protected in the same way we protect tax records. I believe it is the same 
protection in both bills. That is why I was tongue and cheek when I was talking about 
withdrawing it. I think we are too late. Once the bill has the hearing, the sponsor no longer 
has the privilege to withdraw it. I think we probably would like to see how the committee is 
going to deal with 2351.  
 
Chairman Cook: When I talked to Senator Dotzenrod about co-sponsoring SB 2351, we 
agreed to put in this same language. The tax department has amendments for this bill just 
like they do for 2351. 
 
Terry Traynor, Association of Counties: Testified in favor of the bill. See attachment #1. 
County tax directors do not like having that financial information office. Most often what they 
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like to do is sit down with the tax payer and review the information and have them leave with 
it or have it shredded right after. It is a public record if it is in their possession. This would 
clear that up. We agree with the bill and the amendments. Whether it is this bill or 2351, we 
hope it is adopted.  
 
Larry Severson, North Dakota Township Officer’s Association: Testified in favor of the 
bill. We support this bill. Thank you.  
 
Julie Ellingson, Stockman’s Association: Testified in favor of the bill. We support the bill. 
Thank you.  
 
Dan Wogsland, North Dakota Grain Growers: Testified in favor of the bill. See attachment 
#2. We support the bill as well. Thank you.  
 
Chairman Cook: Any further testimony? Hearing none, we will close the hearing on SB 2278. 



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Finance and Taxation Committee 
Lewis and Clark Room, State Capitol 

SB 2278 
2/4/2019 

Job #32074 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Alicia Larsgaard 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact paragraph 4 of subdivision b of subsection 15 of 
section 57-02-08, and subdivision f of subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to exemptions for records provided to assessors to document 
eligibility for the farm residence exemption and the homestead credit. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments: 2 

 
Chairman Cook: Called the committee to order on SB 2278. This bill was introduced to make 
sure records are exempt from public open records. I have a Christmas tree amendment to 
the bill. See attachment #1 and #2.  
 
Senator Dotzenrod: Did we not take those amendments and put them on the other bill?  
 
Chairman Cook: We put them on 2351. These amendments basically turn 2278 into 2351.  
 
Senator Cook: I thought we would throw this one out and just have 2351. In terms of 
protecting the confidentiality of the records, I think they are the same. 
 
Chairman Cook: That is exactly what we are going to do. I hope we pass 2278 and kill 2351. 
Cross out the numbers 2351 and put 2278 on the amendments. 
 
Senator Unruh: Moved to adopt the amendment 19.0809.01001. 
 
Chairman Cook: You will note I the amendments they have two different effective dates. 
That is all that was being waited for on 2351.  
 
Senator Patten: Seconded. 
 
Chairman Cook: Any discussion? 
 
Senator Patten: To be clear, this strictly addresses only the confidentiality?  
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Chairman Cook: It is going to make 2278 identically to what 2351 does. It has the reporting 
requirement. They have to get the form from the tax department. The best thing to do is look 
at the Christmas tree amendment. It makes it a confidential record and a required report. 
 
Senator Dotzenrod: That is income verification which is going on in about 30 counties. The 
majority are doing it and there are about 20 that are not.  
 
Chairman Cook: To be perfectly honest, it is not that I am so concerned that Senator 
Dotzenrod has a bill passing, it is that I am concerned about a bill with my name on it that 
might come back from the house with some increased income deductions on it and I am not 
going to have any part of that being on my bill. Senator Dotzenrod, you have a bill that is 
trying to do just that.  
 
A Voice Vote Was Taken. 
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Senator Dotzenrod: Moved a Do Pass as Amended on SB 2278. 
 
Senator Meyer: Seconded. 
 
Chairman Cook: Any Discussion? 
 
Senator Patten: In visiting with some of the people involved in this process, they would be 
disappointed if the income verification became required and there wasn’t anything else done 
that would address the limits that are presently on the formal exemption. There is that side 
of it. They are willing to accept the income verification, but they really would like to have 
something done on the other side as well.  
 
Chairman Cook: I understand. If you don’t qualify for the exemption because you have too 
much off farm income, you certainly don’t want to verify that unless you can raise the limits 
so your too much farm income is not too much.  
 
Chairman Cook: Any further discussion? 
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken. 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. 
 
Motion Carried. 
 
Senator Dotzenrod will call the bill.  











  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2019 SENATE APPROPRIATIONS 
 

SB 2278 
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Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2278 
2/11/2019 

Job #32506 (10:48) 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Alice Delzer/ Meghan Pegel 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections in the NDFCC relating to the farm home 
residence property tax exemption and the homestead cred to provide for the confidentiality 
of documents evidencing eligibility for the exemption and credit and to provide an effective 
date.  
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments  

 
Chairman Holmberg: called the committee to order on SB 2278.  All committee members 
were present. Brady Larson, Legislative Council, and Renae Bloms, OMB, were also present.  
 
Senator Mathern: The form that is used to determine the farm home residence property tax 
exemption is different from one county to another. The intent of this bill is to get all of the 
counties to use the same form and therefore the same data would be collected for every 
county around the state. To make that all possible, there are some costs for these forms. I 
think it came through the Senate Finance and Tax committee with a clear recommendation, 
and I suspect they were unaware that there are some costs associated with this. It’s 
essentially setting up a system where certain data is kept secret. Everybody does this form, 
but you have to figure out some way where the data that a farm owner submits for the tax 
relief is to be confidential by this new process. I don’t know if it’s a computer program change 
or something like that, but it costs $250,000. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: There is no money in the bill, and the tax commission is on the floor. 
If we were to pass this bill, the tax department would have to make their case in the House. 
 
Senator Bekkedahl: The other thing this allows is the tax department to review a sampling 
of the exemptions provided to make sure that there’s compliance with the eligibility standards, 
which I don’t know if that’s happening now at the county level. Whether that was a question 
that stimulated the bill or not, I’m not sure, but I think it’s very straight forward and simple. 
We don’t know why it’s so expensive to do computer changes, but it is. The $250,000 is 
enhancements to the system to allow them to receipt the records, hold them confidentially 
and do the sampling. 
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Chairman Holmberg: but the tax commissioner’s office would have to make the case as far 
as why they need the money because they say they don’t have it. I don’t have any great 
desire to reopen that particular budget. 
 
Senator Oehlke: I wonder if we could hear from the Association of Counties about whether 
this is something they’re happy with. Do we need this? 
 
Senator Hogue: I was looking at the fiscal note. It talks about the $250,000, but it also says 
there may be ongoing costs that aren’t specified. I’d like to hear from the commissioner about 
this. 
 
(5:05) Terry Traynor, Association of Counties 
 
Traynor: We struggled with the farm home exemption in the counties because it is 
complicated and there are challenges with the checks and balances and the political 
processes that take place at the county level. We had hoped that this bill would provide for 
more certainty on how this information came in. I suspect the sentence in there that says the 
tax commissioner shall review a sampling of these is why there is a fiscal note. That was 
somewhat of an afterthought with the idea that if we’re having challenges that the tax 
commissioner is engaged, maybe that would provide more of a way of keeping things 
consistent across. I would hate to lose the bill because of that. We think the rest of it, the 
confidentiality of the records as well as the requirement that the onus is on the landowner 
requesting the exemption rather than the tax director having to force the issue, makes it a 
better process. The review by the tax commissioner would be nice, but if that weighs the bill 
down, we certainly could take the “shall” and turn it into “may” or something like that to keep 
the bill going.  
 
Senator Robinson: Senator Dotzenrod has done a lot of work on this bill. This is a 
contentious issue. There’s so much inconsistency; I think there are 30 counties that abide 
and try to do their best and some that are very flexible. This has been an issue for a long 
time. I think this is the first step to try to validate, build some consistency and be able to 
defend the process that’s in place. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: I think we should have a subcommittee for this bill to visit with Senator 
Dotzenrod and the tax department. 
 
V. Chairman Wanzek: The issue is who is a legitimate farmer, qualifying exemption. I think 
the goal is to provide consistency and continuity in how each county handles it. 
 
Chairman Holmberg assigns V. Chairman Wanzek, Senator Hogue and Senator 
Grabinger to the subcommittee. 
 
Traynor: There is another bill still in tax that is addressing the thresholds for when you qualify 
and don’t qualify for the exemption. However, I doubt there would be a state fiscal note. 
 
Chairman Holmberg closes the hearing on SB 2278. 



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2278 
2/14/2019 

Job # 32739 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk:   Rose Laning  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the farm home residence property tax exemption and the homestead credit 

to provide for the confidentiality of documents evidencing eligibility for the exemption 
and credit. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Amendment 19.0809.02001 

 
Legislative Council: Chris Kadrmas  
OMB: Becky Keller  
 
 
 
Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on SB 2278.  
 

 
Senator Wanzek: moved amendment 19.0809.02001. 
Senator Grabinger: Seconded the motion.  
Voice vote carried.  
 
 
Senator Wanzek: explained the amendment and moved Do Pass on SB 2278 as amended.  
Senator Erbele: seconded. 
  

A Roll Call Vote was taken:   Yes:__14__   No:__0___   Absent:__0__.  
     Motion carried.  
 
 
The bill goes back to Finance and Tax and Senator Dotzenrod will carry the bill.  
 
 
Chairman Holmberg: Closed the hearing on SB 2278. 
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2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Finance and Taxation Committee 
Fort Totten Room, State Capitol 

SB 2278 
3/6/2019 

33314 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk:  Mary Brucker 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
Relating to the farm home residence property tax exemption and the homestead credit to 
provide for the confidentiality of documents evidencing eligibility for the exemption and credit. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1-4 

 
Chairman Headland:  Opened hearing on SB 2278. 
 
Senator Dotzenrod:  Introduced bill.  The first section has to do with the way farmers who 
want to claim the farm home exemption has to do to make sure there is some enforcement.  
In the current system you have to apply if you want the farm home exemption.  The law says 
the county director of tax equalization may ask for income verification.  This bill changes it 
from “may” to “shall” on line ten.  Of the 53 counties there are about 30 counties doing income 
verification, mostly in the eastern part of the state.  In order to do income verification now the 
tax directors will ask the taxpayer/homeowner to go to the tax director’s website and complete 
a worksheet.  This will need to be turned in along with the application.  The worksheet draws 
a clear line on what farm income is and what it isn’t.  If we’re going to have this exemption, 
then it should be equal across counties, rather than some doing it and some not.  On lines 
15-19 it says it’s a confidential record.  Any of the information collected which goes to the 
courthouse is confidential.  Once those forms are in the possession of the tax director they 
are public record.  It was felt that the information coming off the tax forms should be protected 
and should be confidential.  This is repeated in section two.  There are two effective dates.  
If we should change the way that the farm exemption is tested, then we’ll need to have a set 
of rules for the current year which will be different from the year after the year we’re in.   
 
Chairman Headland:  Is there testimony in support? 
 
Donnell Preskey, North Dakota Association of Counties:  Distributed written testimony, 
see attachment 1.  Ended testimony at 9:03. 
 
Chairman Headland:  Further testimony? 
 
Paul Thomas, Vice President of the North Dakota Corn Growers Association:  
Distributed written testimony, see attachment 2.  Ended testimony at 10:22. 
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Chairman Headland:  Further testimony in support? 
 
Emily Bendish, North Dakota Stockmen’s Association:  Distributed written testimony, 
see attachment 3.  Ended testimony at 11:57. 
 
Chairman Headland:  Further testimony in support? 
 
Dan Wogslund, North Dakota Grain Growers Association:  Financial records and 
confidentiality is a very sacred trust.  We feel this bill helps enhance that trust.  We agree 
with the North Dakota Stockmen’s Association.  We ask that you take a look at the bill on 
lines 9-12 and remove the overstrike and take out the word “shall.”  By bringing in this “shall” 
we’re wondering whether or not we increase at the local level the paperwork for the state tax 
officials which is necessary to do this exemption.  We think that is a local issue and not one 
that should be mandated.   
 
Chairman Headland:  If this bill and the next bill passes would the evidence be clear enough 
that you shouldn’t have to be required to provide the evidence on an annual basis? I assume 
you’ll see that the qualifications are going to be achieved easily.  It would be a lot of extra 
work for the auditors and the tax directors to have to do this annually. 
 
Dan Wogslund:  I would agree with that.  When you have that at a local level for the most 
part you know who’s a farmer.  You also understand who qualifies and who doesn’t.  That’s 
something the committee may want to consider.   
 
Chairman Headland:  Further testimony in support? 
 
Emmery Mehlhoff, North Dakota Farm Bureau:  We are in support.  We appreciate the 
confidentiality ability to protect the privacy of our producers.   
 
Chairman Headland:  Further testimony in support? 
 
Kayla Pulvermacher, North Dakota Farmers Union:  We are in support and we agree with 
our colleagues in terms of the confidentiality piece.   
 
Chairman Headland:  Further testimony in support?  Is there opposition? 
 
Scott Rising, North Dakota Soybean Growers Association:  Distributed written testimony, 
see attachment 4.  We appreciate the fact that the confidentiality portion is in this proposal.  
However, the local versus mandated causes us to fall down on the other side of the issue.  
The idea that if this bill passes then certainly the next bill has to pass so it almost negates 
the need.   
 
Chairman Headland:  Further opposition?  Are there any questions for the tax department?  
Linda, could you explain the process on how this is going to work? 
 
Linda Leadbetter, State Supervisor of Assessments for the Office of the State Tax 
Commissioner:  Right now the farm residence exemption is provided in statute.  It identifies 
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that an application exemption is required on an annual basis.  For counties verifying income 
there is a test required to make enough of your income from the farm and a test for off farm 
income.  The income verification process is done on a three-year cycle.  Right now the 
application is required in order to have the exemption.  There are approximately 30 counties 
who use the income verification.  This would change that if there was a farm residence 
exemption claim provided an income verification would be required every third year.  If SB 
2360 passes as written I believe that is on a two-year cycle.  The portion identifying 
confidentiality is that we instruct assessors and tax directors so as soon as they are done 
with it to destroy it or return it to them.  As it stands now if someone were to walk into a tax 
director’s office and they have the paperwork on their desk it is considered public record.  We 
would like to see it protected from that and it wouldn’t have to be shared as public record.   
 
Chairman Headland:  Does the form come from the tax department so it’s a consistent form 
across the state or does every county have their own form? 
 
Linda Leadbetter:  The application for exemption is a state form.  The form is available for 
everyone to use whether they return that form to the tax director or assessor.  It has been a 
determination of the local jurisdiction where they may have that form completed by the 
individual or their tax preparer.  They would then return an affidavit that swears after 
completion of that document that they believe the individual had been found eligible for the 
exemption.   
 
Representative Steiner:  Is there a dollar amount where anything over $250,000 they pay 
tax or is the value of the farmstead completely exempt under our current scenario and what 
we may be going to? 
 
Linda Leadbetter:  Now it’s the value of the home that would be exempt, regardless of its 
value.  The information we gather to determine what is going to be the farmer they have to 
have at least 50% of their time and income coming from farm activities and they cannot have 
more than $40,000 off on income.    
 
Representative Steiner:  What’s the history of this?  Why was this done? 
 
Linda Leadbetter:  When it first came into play it was an encouragement to keep people on 
the farms.  It was in difficult times.  There is a legislative document telling how it came about.  
I can bring that in to share.   
 
Chairman Headland:  We’d appreciate that.  Could you also provide the committee with the 
form itself?   
 
Linda Leadbetter:  Yes I will supply you with the worksheet.   
 
Chairman Headland:  Is there anything else?  Seeing none we will close the hearing on SB 
2278. 
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33318 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk:  Mary Brucker 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to the farm home residence property tax exemption and the homestead credit to 
provide for the confidentiality of documents evidencing eligibility for the exemption and credit.   
 

Minutes:                                                 No attachments 

 
Representative Dockter:  We probably only need one of the bills. 
 
Chairman Headland:  Those who are in support may disagree.  I disagree.  If we’re going 
to pass one, then we should both pass.  I can see the need for the privacy portion of the bill.  
If we’re going to have an exemption, then it should be usable and updated.  There was 
information brought to the committee on how machinery trades work and how that value is 
now counted as off farm income.  That would take the exemption from every farmer who 
trades a piece of equipment.  It doesn’t take much of a piece of equipment to generate 
$40,000.  If we’re going to have an exemption we’re going to need to do something to fix that.   
 
Representative B. Koppelman:  I think it fundamentally changes the purpose and how it 
will function.   
 
Representative Ertelt:  Are there other records the counties handle that are confidential?   
 
Donnell Preskey, North Dakota Association of Counties:  Once the documents are 
received into the office and the tax director determines they are eligible those documents are 
then shredded.   
 
Representative Ertelt:  Would that remain the practice if they are made a confidential 
record? 
 
Vice Chairman Grueneich:  I talked to legal counsel about using the term “confidential.”  
They said the word “confidential” is the key to making this work because of the freedom of 
information or public records.     
 
Representative Ertelt:  Today it’s not a confidential record but if its moved into the class of 
confidential record are they able then to destroy that record or do they need to keep it? 
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Vice Chairman Grueneich:  They are able to destroy it.  Donnell, on line 10 and 11 how 
important is it to have the terminology of “shall”? Do we need to start a mandate on our local 
organizations? 
 
Donnell Preskey:  This is language that in development of this bill we requested.  It gets 
back to the administration part of the farm home exemption.  The language shifts the burden 
of proof to the individual who wants the exemption.   
 
Representative Mitskog:  I think this is a really important word in this language.  In speaking 
with our local assessor this is important to have in there.   
 
Representative B. Koppelman:  Would it make sense that if this language passes as is 
then the county officials keep these records?   
 
Donnell Preskey:  I can’t answer that question.  They have a records retention schedule in 
the counties. 
 
Dan Rouse, legal counsel for the Office of the State Tax Commissioner:  There is a 
difference between an open, closed and confidential record.  They are all presumed open 
records.  Exempt means a record that is neither open nor confidential but disclosed at the 
discretion of the public entity.  That leaves a lot of room for discretion. The records we are 
referring to in this bill are all open records.  If you are going to call these that aren’t publicly 
disclosed, you need to use the word “confidential.”  If a record is held by a public entity there 
are records retentions schedules that are published by the attorney general’s office which 
vary from type to type.  Typically, income tax returns must be retained for five to seven years 
in case there is a question that comes up in audit.  They cannot be shredded.  Since they are 
open records they should not be shredded, they should be preserved.  If you all decide they 
should be confidential then they still should not be shredded and should be held for whatever 
time is for the records retention period.   
 
Representative B. Koppelman:  Could you find out what the retention time period is for 
property tax exemption for seniors or one of those types of programs that use income 
documentation to give homestead type tax credits? 
 
Dan Rouse:  Absolutely. 
 
Representative Mitskog:  I don’t think that marriage issue is an issue.  I don’t know of 
anybody who is playing that game to try and get that exemption because they are living 
together.   
 
Representative B. Koppelman:  Economics is a factor especially for young people deciding 
if they want to get married or not.  If you give a stack of loopholes that incentivizes people 
not getting married that is going to weigh in on that decision.   
 
Representative Mitskog:  Are you speaking of farmers who are doing this or individuals 
living in a rural farmstead and cohabitating?   
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Representative B. Koppelman:  There would be no benefit if they were not meeting the 
farm requirement.  I struggle to call them farm families because to me a family starts with a 
married couple and they probably wouldn’t be considered farm families if you took the 
unmarried but cohabitating income into account because they would have too much income 
from working somewhere in the city.  This is the exact point of where the problem is.   
 
Chairman Headland:  I don’t know how you would propose to fix this.  You are certainly able 
to try.   
 
Representative B. Koppelman:  I have no issue with the passage of this bill. 
 
Dan Rouse:  The senior records that Representative B. Koppelman was referring to are 10 
years.   
 
Chairman Headland:  We’ll stand at ease for now.   
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk:  Mary Brucker 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to the farm home residence property tax exemption and the homestead credit to 
provide for the confidentiality of documents evidencing eligibility for the exemption and credit.   
 

Minutes:                                                 No attachments 

 
Representative Mitskog:  MADE A MOTION FOR A DO PASS 
 
Representative Eidson:  SECONDED 
 
Chairman Headland:  Discussion? 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  13 YES     0 NO     1 ABSENT 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vice Chairman Grueneich will carry this bill.   
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk:  Mary Brucker 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to the farm home residence property tax exemption and the homestead credit to 
provide for the confidentiality of documents evidencing eligibility for the exemption and credit.   
 

Minutes:                                                 No attachments 

 
Representative Mitskog:  Made a motion to reconsider our actions. 
 
Vice Chairman Grueneich:  Seconded. 
 
Voice Vote:  Motion carried. 
 
Chairman Headland:  There was some question about the old language in the bill and how 
it would flow in consolidation with a bill that we had passed, SB 2360, and was signed by the 
Governor.  I’ve been assured by Emily that the bill fits with the other bill we passed so we 
don’t need any further action on this.  We passed it out pretty handily last time so I think we 
can send it back if someone wants to make the motion.   
 
Vice Chairman Grueneich:  Made a motion for a Do Pass. 
 
Representative Dockter:  Seconded. 
 
Chairman Headland:  Discussion? 
 
Roll Call Vote:  10 Yes     2 No     2 Absent 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Vice Chairman Grueneich will carry this bill.   
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